

Supplementary Note to
Annex 1 to Paper No. CSA15/01
dated 6 December 2001

SCHEDULE 9 [ss. 230, 232, 234,
392, 393, 394 & 395]

SAVINGS, TRANSITIONAL, CONSEQUENTIAL AND
RELATED PROVISIONS, ETC.

PART 1
SAVINGS, TRANSITIONAL AND SUPPLEMENTAL ARRANGEMENTS

**Part II of this Ordinance (Securities and
Futures Commission)**

2. Without prejudice to section 3 of this Ordinance -

* * * * *

(c) ¹any person holding office as the chairman or deputy
chairman, or as an executive director or non-
executive director, of the Commission immediately
before the commencement of Part II of this Ordinance
shall upon such commencement ~~continue to hold~~be
deemed to have been appointed, on the same terms
and conditions as were applicable had this

¹ Members considered Paper CSA15/01 at the Bills Committee meeting on 14 December 2001 and invited the Legal Service Division of the Legislative Council to set out in writing his opinion on any difference in the legal effect of the use of “as if”, “deemed” and “regarded”. Having considered the written opinion, the Department of Justice advises that there is indeed no difference in the legal effect of their use throughout the context of Schedule 9. This notwithstanding, we have taken on board amendments recommended by the Assistant Legal Adviser for allaying his concern about any perceived difference in the legal effect.

Ordinance not been enacted, the corresponding office ~~under this Ordinance as if he had been appointed on such terms and conditions in accordance with the provisions regarding appointment to such corresponding office~~ under that Part and Schedule 2 to this Ordinance;

- (d) ¹the Advisory Committee constituted under section 10 of the repealed Securities and Futures Commission Ordinance immediately before the commencement of Part II of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue in existence as if it had~~ be deemed to have been constituted under section 7 of and Schedule 2 to this Ordinance;
- (e) ¹any committee which has been established under section 6 of the repealed Securities and Futures Commission Ordinance and which is in existence immediately before the commencement of Part II of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue in existence as if it had~~ be deemed to have been established under section 8 of this Ordinance;
- (f) ¹any person holding office as a member of the Advisory Committee referred to in paragraph (d), or as a member of a committee referred to in paragraph (e), immediately before the commencement of Part II of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue to hold~~ be deemed to have been

appointed, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable had this Ordinance not been enacted, the corresponding office ~~under this Ordinance as if he had been appointed on such terms and conditions in accordance with the provisions regarding appointment to such corresponding office under that~~ Part and Schedule 2 to this Ordinance;

- (g) ¹any person employed or engaged in any office, other than that referred to in paragraph (c) or (f), by the Commission under or pursuant to any provision of the repealed Securities and Futures Commission Ordinance immediately before the commencement of Part II of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue to be so~~ be deemed to have been employed or engaged in the same office, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable had this Ordinance not been enacted, ~~as if he had been employed or engaged~~ under or pursuant to that Part ~~on such terms and conditions.~~

**Part III of this Ordinance (Exchanges, Clearing
Houses and Investor Compensation Companies)**

* * * * *

5. On the commencement of Division 2 of Part III of this Ordinance

-

(a) ¹the Stock Exchange Company and the Futures Exchange Company shall each be deemed to have been ~~be a~~ ~~recognized as an~~ exchange company ~~as if, upon such commencement, each of them had been served a notice under section 19(2) of this Ordinance recognizing it as an exchange company, and the other provisions of this Ordinance (including sections 19(3) and 28) shall apply accordingly with all necessary modifications;~~

(b) ¹the rules of -

(i) the Stock Exchange Company made under section 34 (except subsection (1)(b)) of the repealed Stock Exchanges Unification Ordinance and approved under section 35 of that Ordinance; and

(ii) the Futures Exchange Company approved under section 14 of the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance,

which are in effect immediately before such commencement shall ~~upon such commencement continue to have effect as if they were rules be deemed to have been~~ made under section 23 of this Ordinance and approved under section 24(3) of this Ordinance;

(c) ¹the respective constitutions of the Stock Exchange Company and the Futures Exchange Company, which are in effect immediately before such commencement shall ~~upon such commencement continue~~ be deemed to have effect as if each of them had been approved under section 24 of this Ordinance; and

(d) ¹any appointment of a person as chief executive of the Stock Exchange Company or the Futures Exchange Company which is in effect immediately before such commencement shall ~~upon such commencement continue~~ be deemed to have effect, ~~on the same terms and conditions as were applicable had this Ordinance not been enacted, as if the appointment had been approved under section 26 of this Ordinance.~~

6. ¹On the commencement of Division 3 of Part III of this Ordinance, the HKSCC, HKFECC and SEOCH shall each be deemed to ~~be~~ have been recognized as a clearing house ~~as if, upon such commencement, each of them had been served a notice under section 37(1) of this Ordinance recognizing it as a clearing house, and~~

~~the other provisions of this Ordinance (including sections 37(2) and 43) shall apply accordingly with all necessary modifications.~~

* * * * *

9. Without limiting the generality of section 7 -

(a) ¹a notice which is published under section 4(4) of the repealed Securities and Futures (Clearing Houses) Ordinance and which is in effect immediately before the commencement of Division 3 of Part III of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue~~ be deemed to have effect as ~~if it had~~ been published under section 41(7) of this Ordinance; and

(b) ¹the rules of the HKSCC, HKFECC and SECH which -

- (i) have been approved under section 4(7) of the repealed Securities and Futures (Clearing Houses) Ordinance; or
- (ii) have been submitted or cause to be submitted under section 4(5) of that Ordinance,

and which are in effect immediately before the commencement of Division 3 of Part III of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue to~~ have effect as if be deemed to have been -

- (A) in the case of subparagraph (i), ~~they were rules approved under section 41(3) of this Ordinance;~~ or
- (B) in the case of subparagraph (ii), ~~they were rules submitted or caused to be submitted under section 41(2)(b) of this Ordinance.~~

10. ¹On the commencement of Division 4 of Part III of this Ordinance, the HKEC ~~which is~~ shall be deemed to be a have been recognized as an exchange controller under section ~~19 of the repealed Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger) Ordinance~~ shall upon such commencement continue to be so deemed as if it had been served a notice under section ~~59(2) of this Ordinance recognizing it as an exchange controller, and the other provisions of this Ordinance (including sections 59(3) and 72)~~ shall apply accordingly with all necessary modifications.

* * * * *

13. Without limiting the generality of section 11 -

- (a) ¹a notice which is published under section 10(6) of the repealed Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger)

Ordinance and which is in effect immediately before the commencement of Division 4 of Part III of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue to be deemed~~ to have effect as if it had been published under section 67(7) of this Ordinance;

(b) ¹the rules of the HKEC which have been approved under section 10(3) of the repealed Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger) Ordinance and which are in effect immediately before the commencement of Division 4 of Part III of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue to have effect as if they were rules~~ be deemed to have been approved under section 67(3) of this Ordinance;

(c) ¹any approval which is given under section 6(2) of the repealed Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger) Ordinance and which is in effect immediately before the commencement of Division 4 of Part III of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue to be deemed~~ to have effect as if the approval had been given under section 61(1) of this Ordinance;

(d) ¹any appointment of a person as chairman, chief executive or chief operating officer of a recognized exchange controller which is in effect immediately before the commencement of Division 4 of Part III of this Ordinance shall upon such commencement ~~continue to be deemed~~ to have effect, on

~~the same terms and conditions as were applicable~~
~~had this Ordinance not been enacted, as if the~~
~~appointment had been approved under section 69 or~~
70 (as the case may be) of this Ordinance; and

(e) ¹the Risk Management Committee established under section 9 of the repealed Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger) Ordinance shall upon the commencement of Division 4 of Part III of this Ordinance ~~continue in existence as if it had be~~ deemed to have been established under section 65 of this Ordinance.

* * * * *

Part V of this Ordinance (Licensing and Registration)

Corporations other than exempt dealers
and exempt investment advisers

22. Subject to section 54, a corporation which immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is -

(a) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~ deemed to have been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities;

- (b) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an investment adviser shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities;
- (c) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a securities margin financier shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 8 regulated activity;
- (d) ¹registered under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities;
- (e) ¹registered under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a commodity trading adviser shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities;

(f) ¹licensed under the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance as a leveraged foreign exchange trader shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 3 regulated activity,

¹and ~~as having~~to have complied with the requirement of section 124(1)(a) and (b) of this Ordinance, and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded as~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

23. ¹Subject to section 54, where a corporation is ~~regarded as~~deemed under section 22 ~~as~~to have been licensed, any director of that corporation who is an individual and immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is -

(a) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;

(b) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an investment adviser of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to

have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;

(c) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a securities margin financier's representative of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 8 regulated activity and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;

(d) ¹registered under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;

(e) ¹registered under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a commodity trading adviser of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject to the

condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;

- (f) ¹licensed under the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance as a representative of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~ deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 3 regulated activity and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation,

¹and ~~as~~ approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer of that corporation, and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded as~~ deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

24. ¹Subject to section 54, where a corporation is ~~regarded as~~ deemed under section 22 ~~as~~ to have been licensed, any individual not being a director of that corporation who immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is -

- (a) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer's representative of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~ deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;

- (b) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an investment representative of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as deemed~~ to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;
- (c) ¹registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a securities margin financier's representative of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as deemed~~ to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 8 regulated activity and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;
- (d) ¹registered under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer's representative of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as deemed~~ to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;

(e) ¹registered under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a commodity trading adviser's representative of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation;

(f) ¹licensed under the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance as a representative of that corporation shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 3 regulated activity and ~~as~~ accredited to that corporation,

¹and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded as~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

Persons who are exempt dealers or
exempt investment advisers

25. Subject to section 54 -

(a) an authorized financial institution which
immediately before the commencement of Part V of
this Ordinance is -

(i) ¹an exempt dealer within the meaning of
the repealed Securities Ordinance shall,
upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~
deemed to have been registered under
section 118(1) of this Ordinance for Type
1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the
condition specified in section 50) Type
9 regulated activities;

(ii) ¹an exempt investment adviser within
the meaning of the repealed Securities
Ordinance shall, upon such commencement,
be ~~deemed to have been regarded as~~
registered under section 118(1) of this
Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject
to the condition specified in section 50)
Type 9 regulated activities,

¹and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement;

(b) a corporation (other than an authorized financial institution), partnership or individual who immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is -

(i) ¹an exempt dealer within the meaning of the repealed Securities Ordinance shall, upon such commencement, be deemed to be ~~regarded as~~ a licensed corporation that ~~is~~ has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities;

(ii) ¹an exempt investment adviser within the meaning of the repealed Securities Ordinance shall, upon such commencement, be deemed to be ~~regarded as~~ a licensed corporation that ~~is~~ has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities,

¹and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement, and for so long as such corporation, partnership or individual is so ~~regarded~~deemed, the requirement of section 124(1)(a) and (b) and section 130(1)² of this Ordinance shall not apply to it.

26. Where immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance an individual is engaged -

- (a) by an authorized financial institution; or
- (b) by a corporation (other than an authorized financial institution), partnership or individual,

¹to perform any act which, after such commencement, would constitute a regulated function in relation to a regulated activity for which the institution is ~~regarded~~deemed under section 25(a) ~~as to have been registered~~ or the corporation, partnership or individual is ~~regarded~~deemed under section 25(b) ~~as to have been licensed~~ (as the case may be), the first-mentioned individual shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed as -

² **Members considered Paper CSA 15/01 at the Bills Committee meeting on 14 December 2001 and did not propose further change to this clause. We propose this additional amendment to rectify an omission. With the further amendment, exempted dealers and investment advisers will not have to have their substantial shareholders approved by the SFC during the two-year transitional period. This is same as the requirement regarding responsible officers.**

- (i) ¹(if paragraph (a) applies to the first-mentioned individual) to be a person whose name is has been entered in the register maintained by the Monetary Authority under section 20 of the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155) as engaged by the institution in respect of that regulated activity;
- (ii) ¹(if paragraph (b) applies to the first-mentioned individual) to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for that regulated activity (subject to the condition specified in section 50) and ~~as~~ accredited to the corporation, partnership or individual (in its capacity as a licensed corporation by virtue of section 25(b)),

¹and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

Partnerships

27. Subject to section 54, a partnership which immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is registered -

- (a) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to be as a licensed corporation that is has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for

Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities;

(b) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an investment adviser shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to be as a licensed corporation that ~~is~~has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities;

(c) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to be as a licensed corporation that ~~is~~has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities;

(d) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a commodity trading adviser shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to be as a licensed corporation that ~~is~~has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities,

¹and ~~as having~~to have complied with the requirement of section 124(1)(a) and (b) of this Ordinance, and, subject to section 52,

shall be so ~~regarded~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

28. ¹Subject to section 54, where a partnership is ~~regarded~~deemed under section 27 ~~as to be a~~ licensed corporation, any partner of that partnership who immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is registered -

- (a) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer of that partnership shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed as to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation;
- (b) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an investment adviser of that partnership shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to have been ~~as~~ licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation;
- (c) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer of that partnership shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to have been as

licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation;

- (d) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a commodity trading adviser of that partnership shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to have been as licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation,

¹and ~~as~~ approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer of that licensed corporation, and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

29. ¹Subject to section 54, where a partnership is ~~regarded~~deemed under section 27 ~~as to be a~~ licensed corporation, any individual who immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is registered -

- (a) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer's representative of that partnership shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to have

~~been as~~-licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation;

(b) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an investment representative of that partnership shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to have been as-licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~-accredited to that licensed corporation;

(c) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer's representative of that partnership shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~deemed to have been as-licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~-accredited to that licensed corporation;

(d) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a commodity trading adviser's representative of that partnership shall, upon such commencement, be

~~regarded as deemed to have been~~ licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation,

¹and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

Sole-proprietorships

30. Subject to section 54, an individual who immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is registered -

(a) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~-

~~as~~deemed -

(i) to be a licensed corporation that ~~is~~has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities;

(ii) to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type

6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation; and

(iii) to have been approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer of that licensed corporation;

(b) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an investment adviser shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as deemed~~ -

(i) to be a licensed corporation that ~~is~~ has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities;

(ii) to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation; and

(iii) to have been approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer of that licensed corporation;

(c) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed -

(i) to be a licensed corporation that ~~is~~has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities;

(ii) to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation; and

(iii) to have been approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer of that licensed corporation;

(d) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a commodity trading adviser shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~deemed -

(i) to be a licensed corporation that ~~is~~has been licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities;

(ii) to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation; and

(iii) to have been approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer of that licensed corporation,

¹and ~~as having~~to have complied with the requirement of section 124(1)(a) and (b) of this Ordinance, and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

31. ¹Subject to section 54, where an individual is ~~regarded~~deemed under section 30 ~~as~~to be a licensed corporation, any other individual who immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance is registered -

(a) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer's representative of the first-mentioned individual shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded~~as deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 1, Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50)

Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation;

(b) ¹under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an investment representative of the first-mentioned individual shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~ deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation;

(c) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer's representative of the first-mentioned individual shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~ deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 2, Type 5 and (subject to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation;

(d) ¹under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a commodity trading adviser's representative of the first-mentioned individual shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~ deemed to have been licensed as a licensed representative under section 119(1) of this Ordinance for Type 5 and (subject

to the condition specified in section 51) Type 9 regulated activities and ~~as~~ accredited to that licensed corporation, and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~ deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

Licensed banks

32. ¹Where immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance, a licensed bank would have fallen within the meaning of the definition of "investment adviser" in section 2(1) of the repealed Securities Ordinance but for paragraph (i) of that definition, it shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~ deemed to have been registered under section 118(1) of this Ordinance for Type 4, Type 6 and (subject to the condition specified in section 50) Type 9 regulated activities, and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~ deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

33. ¹Where immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance an individual is engaged by a licensed bank to perform any act which, after such commencement, would constitute a regulated function in relation to a regulated activity for which the bank is ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 32 ~~as~~ to have been registered, that individual shall, upon such commencement, be ~~regarded as~~ deemed to be a person whose name ~~is~~ has been entered

in the register maintained by the Monetary Authority under section 20 of the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155) as engaged by the bank in respect of that regulated activity, and, subject to section 52, shall be so ~~regarded~~deemed for a period of 2 years from such commencement.

Persons providing automated trading services

34. ¹Where immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance, a person is carrying on a business in providing automated trading services, and the person is -

- (a) a corporation to which section 22(a) or (d) or 25(b)(i) applies;
- (b) a partnership to which section 25(b)(i) or 27(a) or (c) applies; or
- (c) an individual to whom section 25(b)(i) or 30(a) or (c) applies,

then in relation to the person, any of those sections that applies to the person as such corporation, partnership or individual (as the case may be) shall be read and construed as if Type 7 regulated activity were added as a regulated activity for which the person is ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been licensed (in its capacity as a licensed corporation by virtue of that section), and the provisions of sections 22 to 59 shall be construed accordingly.

35. Where section 34 is applicable to a corporation, partnership or individual ("the first-mentioned individual"), then in relation to -

- (a) a director of the corporation to whom section 23(a) or (d) applies;
- (b) an individual (not being a director) of the corporation to whom section 24(a) or (d) applies;
- (c) a partner of the partnership to whom section 28(a) or (c) applies;
- (d) an individual (not being a partner) of the partnership to whom section 29(a) or (c) applies;
- (e) the first-mentioned individual, to whom section 30(a)(ii) and (iii) or (c)(ii) and (iii) applies;
- (f) an individual to whom section 31(a) or (c) applies in relation to the first-mentioned individual; or
- (g) an individual to whom section 26(ii) applies in relation to the corporation, partnership or first-mentioned individual,

any of those sections that applies to such director, partner or individual (including the first-mentioned individual) (as the case may be) shall be read and construed as if Type 7 regulated activity were added as a regulated activity for which such director, partner or individual is ~~regarded as~~ deemed to have been licensed (in his capacity as a licensed representative by virtue of that section) or approved (in his capacity as a responsible officer by virtue of that section) and the provisions of sections 22 to 59 shall be

construed accordingly.

36. ¹Where immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance, a person is carrying on a business in providing automated trading services, and the person is an authorized financial institution to which section 25(a)(i) applies, then in relation to the institution, that section shall be read and construed as if Type 7 regulated activity were added as a regulated activity for which the institution is ~~regarded as~~deemed to have been registered and the provisions of sections 22 to 59 shall be construed accordingly.

* * * * *

Persons dealing in futures contracts solely with persons
outside Hong Kong

45A. For the purposes of sections 47, 48 and 49, "dealing in futures contracts" (期貨合約交易) has the meaning assigned to it by Part 2 of Schedule 6 to this Ordinance.³

* * * * *

³ **This additional technical amendment to Paper CSA15/01 is consequential to the further amendment proposed to the definition of "dealing in futures contracts" in Schedule 1 which makes that definition no longer applicable here.**

Deemed condition for Type 9 regulated activity

50. Where a person is -

(a) immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance -

(i) registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer, investment adviser, dealer's representative or investment representative;

(ii) declared under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an exempt dealer or an exempt investment adviser; or

(iii) a licensed bank referred to in section 32; and

(b) ~~regarded deemed~~ under section 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 or 32 as to have been licensed or registered for Type 9 regulated activity under Part V of this Ordinance,

then without prejudice to section 54, such licence or registration referred to in paragraph (b) shall be subject to a condition that the person shall not provide a service of managing a portfolio of futures contracts for another person.

51. Where a person is -

(a) immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance registered under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer, commodity trading adviser, dealer's representative or commodity trading adviser's representative; and

(b) ~~regarded deemed~~ under section 22, 23, 24, 27, 28, 29, 30 or 31 as to have been licensed for Type 9 regulated activity under Part V of this Ordinance,

then without prejudice to section 54, such licence referred to in paragraph (b) shall be subject to a condition that the person shall not provide a service of managing a portfolio of securities for another person.

Further provisions on transitional period

52. (1) Where, within 2 years from the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance -

(a) ~~a corporation regarded deemed~~ under section 22 or 25(b) as to have been licensed for a regulated activity applies to be licensed for that regulated activity under section 115(1) of this Ordinance, then without prejudice to subsection (3)(C), it shall ~~continue to be regarded deemed~~ -

(i) as to have been so licensed; and

(ii) (in the case of a corporation ~~regarded~~
deemed under section 22 to have been as
licensed) ~~as having to have~~ complied with
the requirement of section 124(1)(a) and
(b) of this Ordinance in relation to that
regulated activity,

~~until the notice in writing of the Commission's~~
~~final decision of that application has been served~~
~~on the applicant licence applied for is granted or~~
the Commission's refusal to grant the licence takes
effect as a specified decision under section 224,
as the case may be⁴;

(b) ¹a company, or an overseas company that has complied
with the provisions of Part XI of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) for the registration of
documents, applies to be licensed under section
115(1) of this Ordinance for a regulated activity
and -

(i) all the partners of a partnership
~~regarded~~ deemed under section 25(b) or
27 ~~as to have been~~ licensed for that

⁴ Members considered Paper CSA 15/01 at the Bills Committee meeting on 14 December 2001 and did not propose further change to this clause. We propose this additional amendment such that the relevant time to determine when a corporation, etc ceases to be deemed licensed, is when the relevant decision of the SFC has been confirmed by the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal if an appeal has been lodged and not merely when the SFC has handed out its decision.

regulated activity are shareholders of the applicant;

(ii) the collective shareholdings of such partners would have made them a majority shareholder of the applicant if they were one single shareholder of the applicant; and

(iii) the applicant satisfies the Commission that -

(A) it is incorporated for the purposes of taking over the business carried on by that partnership in that regulated activity; and

(B) sufficient arrangements have been or will be made to effect the transfer of such business from that partnership to the applicant,

then without prejudice to subsection (3)(C), that partnership shall ~~continue to be regarded~~ deemed

-

(A) ~~as to have been~~ so licensed; and

(B) (in the case of a partnership ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 27 ~~as to have been~~ licensed) ~~as having to have~~ complied with the requirement of section 124(1)(a) and

(b) of this Ordinance in relation to that regulated activity,

⁴until the licence applied for is granted or the Commission's refusal to grant the licence takes effect as a specified decision under section 224, as the case may be; notice in writing of the Commission's final decision of that application has been served on the applicant;

(c) ¹a company, or an overseas company that has complied with the provisions of Part XI of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for the registration of documents, applies to be licensed under section 115(1) of this Ordinance for a regulated activity and -

(i) an individual ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 25(b) or 30 ~~as to have been~~ licensed for that regulated activity is a majority shareholder of the applicant; and

(ii) the applicant satisfies the Commission that -

(A) it is incorporated for the purposes of taking over the business carried on by that individual in that regulated activity; and

(B) sufficient arrangements have been or will be made to effect the transfer of such business from that individual to the applicant, then without prejudice to subsection (3)(C), that individual shall ~~continue to be regarded~~ deemed -

(A) ~~as to have been~~ so licensed;

(B) (in the case of an individual ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 30 ~~as to have been~~ licensed) ~~as having to have~~ complied with the requirement of section 124(1)(a) and (b) of this Ordinance in relation to that regulated activity; and

(C) (in the case of an individual ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 30 ~~as to have been~~ licensed) ~~as having to have~~ been approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer in relation to that licensed corporation,

⁴until the licence applied for is granted or the Commission's refusal to grant the licence takes effect as a specified decision under section 224, as the case may be; notice in writing of the Commission's final decision of that application has been served on the applicant;

(d) ¹a director ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 23, or a partner ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 28, as--

(i) to have been licensed for a regulated activity and ~~as~~ accredited to a corporation; and

(ii) to have been approved as a responsible officer of that corporation,

applies to be licensed for the regulated activity under section 119(1) of this Ordinance, he shall, subject to subsection (6), ~~continue to be so regarded~~ deemed until the licence applied for is granted or the Commission's refusal to grant the licence takes effect as a specified decision under section 224, as the case may be⁴;

~~(A) until the notice in writing of the Commission's final decision of that application has been served on him; or~~

~~(B) where the application is refused, until the expiration of 21 days after the notice in writing of the Commission's final decision of that application has been served on him or (if an application is made under section 211 of this Ordinance for review of that decision) the determination of the review;~~

(e) ¹an individual ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 24, 26(ii), 29 or 31 ~~as to have been~~ licensed for a regulated activity and accredited to a corporation applies to be licensed for the regulated activity under section 119(1) of this Ordinance, he shall, subject to subsection (6), ~~continue to be so~~ regarded deemed until the licence applied for is granted or the Commission's refusal to grant the licence takes effect as a specified decision under section 224, as the case may be⁴;

~~(i) until the notice in writing of the Commission's final decision of that application has been served on him; or~~

~~(ii) where the application is refused, until the expiration of 21 days after the notice in writing of the Commission's final decision of that application has been served on him or (if an application is made under section 211 of this Ordinance for review of that decision) the determination of the review.~~

(2) ¹Where, within 2 years from the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance, an authorized financial institution ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 25(a) ~~as to have been~~ registered, or a licensed bank ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 32 ~~as to have been~~ registered, for a regulated activity, applies to be registered for that

regulated activity under section 118(1) of this Ordinance, then without prejudice to subsection (3)(C) -

- (a) ¹it shall ~~continue to be regarded as~~ deemed to have been so registered; and
- (b) ¹an individual ~~regarded deemed~~ under section 26(i) or 33 ~~as to be~~ a person whose name is has been entered in the register referred to in that section as engaged by the institution or licensed bank (as the case may be) in that regulated activity shall, subject to subsection (6), ~~continue to be so regarded deemed~~,

until the applicant is registered pursuant to the application or the Commission's refusal to register the applicant takes effect as a specified decision under section 224, as the case may be ~~notice in writing of the Commission's final decision of that application has been served on the applicant~~⁴.

(3) Where -

- (a) an application referred to in subsection (1)(a), (b) or (c) or (2) in relation to a regulated activity is refused; or
- (b) such an application is refused and the applicant applies for review of the refusal under section 211 of this Ordinance, and the refusal is confirmed by the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal,

then -

- (i) in the case of an application referred to in subsection (1)(a) or (2), the applicant;
- (ii) in the case of an application referred to in subsection (1)(b), the partnership from which the applicant intends to take over the business in that regulated activity; or
- (iii) in the case of an application referred to in subsection (1)(c), the individual from whom the applicant intends to take over the business in that regulated activity,

shall -

- (A) cease to carry on that regulated activity within 21 days of the refusal or the confirmation (as the case may be) or within such further period as the Commission notifies the applicant, partnership or individual (as the case may be) in writing;
- (B) comply with such reasonable conditions as the Commission may impose for such cessation; and
- (C) ¹before such cessation but in any event not later than the 21 days or further period mentioned in paragraph (A) and solely for the purpose of winding up its business in that regulated activity, continue to be ~~regarded as deemed to have been~~ licensed or registered or ~~having to have~~ complied with the requirement of section 124(1)(a) and (b) of this Ordinance or ~~having to have~~ been approved

as a responsible officer for or in relation to that regulated activity, as may be applicable, and may be subject to the exercise of the power of the Commission under section 193 of this Ordinance as if the licence or registration referred to in paragraph (C) in respect of the applicant, partnership or individual (as the case may be) had been revoked on the occurrence of the circumstances specified in paragraphs (a) and (b) (whichever is applicable).

(4) ¹Where a person is ~~regarded~~ deemed under section 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 or 32 ~~as to have been~~ licensed or registered for a regulated activity or approved as a responsible officer, the provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to or in relation to the person as they apply to or in relation to a person who is licensed or registered for that regulated activity or approved as a responsible officer (as the case may be) with such modifications under section 131 of this Ordinance as may be necessary in case he is a partnership or an individual carrying on a business in that regulated activity (as the case may be).

(5) ¹Where an individual's name is ~~regarded~~ deemed -

- (a) under section 26(i); or
- (b) under section 33,

~~as to have been~~ entered in the register maintained by the Monetary Authority under section 20 of the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155) as engaged by the institution concerned or the bank concerned in respect of a regulated activity, the provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to or in relation to the individual as they apply to

or in relation to an individual whose name is entered in such register in respect of that regulated activity with such modifications under section 131 of this Ordinance as may be necessary.

(6) If -

(a) ¹a director of a corporation who is ~~regarded-deemed~~ under section 23 as--

(i) to have been licensed as a licensed representative and ~~as~~-accredited to that corporation; and

(ii) to have been approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer of that corporation,

ceases to be a director of that corporation, he shall upon such cessation cease to be so ~~regarded-deemed~~;

(b) ¹a partner of a partnership who is ~~regarded-deemed~~ under section 28 as--

(i) to have been licensed as a licensed representative and ~~as~~-accredited to that partnership (~~regarded-deemed~~ under section 27 ~~as~~-to be a licensed corporation); and

(ii) to have been approved under section 125(1) of this Ordinance as a responsible officer of that corporation,

ceases to be a partner of that partnership, he shall upon such cessation cease to be so ~~regarded~~deemed ;

(c) ¹an individual who is ~~regarded~~deemed under section 24, 26(ii), 29 or 31 ~~as to have been~~ licensed as a licensed representative and ~~as~~ accredited to a licensed person ceases to act for or on behalf of that licensed person in relation to the regulated activity for which he is so ~~regarded~~deemed , he shall upon such cessation cease to be so ~~regarded~~deemed ;

(d) ¹an individual who is ~~regarded~~deemed under section 26(i) or 33 ~~as to be a person whose name is~~ has been entered in the register referred to in that section ceases to be engaged by the institution concerned or the bank concerned to perform any act which constitutes a regulated function in relation to the relevant regulated activity, he shall upon such cessation cease to be so ~~regarded~~deemed .

* * * * *

Miscellaneous

54. Where a person is -

(a) immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance -

(i) registered under the repealed Securities Ordinance as a dealer, investment adviser, securities margin financier, dealer's representative, investment representative or securities margin financier's representative;

(ii) declared under the repealed Securities Ordinance as an exempt dealer or an exempt investment adviser;

(iii) registered under the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance as a dealer, commodity trading adviser, dealer's representative or commodity trading adviser's representative; or

(iv) licensed under the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance as a leveraged foreign exchange trader or representative; and

(b) ~~regarded deemed~~ under section 22, 23, 24, 25, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 or 32 as to have been licensed or registered under Part V of this Ordinance,

¹any condition that has been attached or imposed by the Commission to the registration, exemption or licence referred to in paragraph (a) which is in force immediately before such commencement shall,

upon such commencement, ~~be deemed to have been regarded as being~~ imposed in respect of the licence or registration referred to in paragraph (b).

55. Where -

(a) approval for premises to be used for keeping records or documents has been given by the Commission under the repealed Securities and Futures Commission Ordinance or the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance⁵; and

(b) the approval subsists immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance,

~~the approval shall, upon such commencement, be deemed to have been regarded as given~~ under section 129 of this Ordinance.

56. Where -

(a) approval for a subordinated loan has been given by the Commission under the Financial Resources Rules (Cap. 24 sub. leg.) repealed under section 392 of this Ordinance or the Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 451 sub.

⁵ **Members considered Paper CSA 15/01 at the Bills Committee meeting on 14 December 2001 and did not propose further change to this clause. We propose this additional amendment to rectify the omission as approval for premises to be used for keeping records and documents has been granted also under the Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance.**

leg.) repealed under section 392 of this Ordinance;
and

- (b) the approval subsists immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance,

¹the approval shall, upon such commencement, be deemed to have been regarded as given under this Ordinance.

⁶56A. Where -

- (a) approval to be a substantial shareholder has been given by the Commission under the repealed Securities and Futures Commission Ordinance or the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance; and

- (b) the approval subsists immediately before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance,

the approval shall, upon such commencement, be deemed to have been given under section 130A of this Ordinance.

57. Where -

- (a) an application is made before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance for approval to be a substantial shareholder under section 26A of the repealed Securities and Futures Commission

⁶ We propose this additional amendment to Paper CSA 15/01 to rectify the omission such that approval of substantial shareholders granted under the existing regime would be deemed to have continued effect under the new regime.

~~Ordinance or section 14A of the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance⁷; and~~

- (b) immediately before such commencement the application has not been granted, refused or withdrawn,

the application shall, upon such commencement, be treated as an application to become a substantial shareholder under section 130A of this Ordinance.

~~⁸58. Where the Commission has commenced action (including the making of any inquiry) before the commencement of Part V of this Ordinance under—~~

~~(a) section 55 or 56 of the repealed Securities Ordinance;~~

~~(b) section 35 or 36 of the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance; or~~

~~(c) section 11 or 12 of the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance,~~

~~and the action is pending immediately before such commencement,~~

⁷ **Members considered Paper CSA 15/01 at the Bills Committee meeting on 14 December 2001 and did not propose further change to this clause. We propose this additional amendment to rectify the omission as applications for approval to become substantial shareholders can also be made under the Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance.**

⁸ **Clause 58 deals with misconduct of currently licensed or registered persons in respect of which regulatory action has been initiated by the SFC under relevant existing law but not completed on commencement of the SF [Ordinance]. We propose further amendment to delete this clause and have the subject matter dealt with under clause 63 so that the existing law applies to pre-commencement misconduct irrespective of whether the SFC has initiated action under the existing law. Amendments are also proposed to clause 63 in order to apply the same policy to currently exempted persons.**

~~the action shall, upon such commencement, be regarded as having been commenced under this Ordinance and may be continued in accordance with section 175 or 187 of this Ordinance.~~

* * * * *

Part IX of this Ordinance (Discipline, etc.)

* * * * *

~~§63. Where, before the commencement of Part IX of this Ordinance~~

-

~~(a) before the commencement of Part IX of this Ordinance~~

any conduct, event, matter or thing that occurred can be the subject of -

(i) the exercise of any power under section 35 or 36 of the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance;

(ii) the exercise of any power under section 55, ~~or 56,~~ 60 or 61 of the repealed Securities Ordinance; or

(iii) the exercise of any power under section 11 or 12 of the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance; and

~~(b) no such the power has not been exercised before such commencement; or,~~

(b) any power has been exercised under any of the provisions referred to in paragraphs (a)(i), (ii)

and (iii), and the exercise of the power would, but for the enactment of this Ordinance, continue to have force and effect on or after such commencement,

then -

- (i) (where paragraph (a) applies) the power may be exercised or (where paragraph (b) applies) the exercise of the power shall continue to have force and effect, as if this Ordinance had not been enacted; and
- (ii) subject to section 65, the provisions of the repealed Commodities Trading Ordinance, the repealed Securities Ordinance or the repealed Leveraged Foreign Exchange Trading Ordinance (as the case may be) and the repealed Securities and Futures Commission Ordinance (where applicable) shall continue to apply to the exercise of the power and to any matters relating thereto as if this Ordinance had not been enacted.

64. ¹Where -

- (a) the exercise of any power under section 63 results in the revocation of any declaration of exemption or the revocation or suspension of any registration or licence of any person, or the suspension of any such registration or licence continues to have force and effect by virtue of that section and

(b) the ~~registration or licence~~ person has, by reason of the declaration or registration or licence referred to in paragraph (a), been deemed under any of the provisions ~~virtue of~~ sections 22 to 37, ~~been regarded as to have been~~ a registered or licensed ~~ee~~ under this Ordinance,

the registration or licence of the person under this Ordinance shall, notwithstanding sections 22 to 37, be regarded as having been revoked or suspended (as the case may be) on the same terms and conditions on which the declaration or registration or licence referred to in paragraph (a) is revoked or suspended.

* * * * *

Part XV of this Ordinance (Disclosure of Interests)

* * * * *

78. Any exemption that is granted under section 2A of the repealed Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance and is in effect immediately before the commencement of Part XV of this Ordinance shall, upon such commencement, be deemed to have been ~~continue to have effect as if it were granted~~, subject to the same conditions as were applicable had this Ordinance not been enacted¹, under section 300 of this Ordinance.

81. Where an investigation is carried out under the repealed Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance but has not been concluded before the commencement of Part XV of this Ordinance,

=

(a) any power that is exercisable under that Ordinance for the purposes of the investigation shall, upon such commencement, remain exercisable as if this Ordinance had not been enacted; and

(b) the provisions of the repealed Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance shall continue to apply to the exercise of the power and to any other matters relating thereto as if this Ordinance had not been enacted.⁹

Financial Services Bureau
Securities and Futures Commission
7 January 2002

⁹ We accept the comment from the Legal Service Division of the Legislative Council and have included a new paragraph (b) for completeness.

Supplementary Note to
Annex 2 to Paper No. CSA15/01
dated 6 December 2001

SCHEDULE 9 [ss. 230, 232, 234,
392, 393, 394 & 395]

* * * * *

PART 2

CONSEQUENTIAL AND SUPPLEMENTAL AMENDMENTS

* * * * *

Item Enactment Amendment

(New Item)

¹26. Banking In section 19, in the new section
(Amendment) 92(2)(b), repeal everything after "which"
Ordinance 2001 and substitute "section 102(1) of the
(32 of 2001) Securities and Futures Ordinance (of
2002) does not apply to the advertisement,
invitation or document by virtue of
section 102(3)(f), (g), (h) or (ha) of
that Ordinance or the issue of which is
authorized under section 104(1) of that
Ordinance;".

Financial Services Bureau
Securities and Futures Commission
7 January 2002

¹ **The Banking (Amendment) Ordinance 2001 (32 of 2001) (BAO 2001) was enacted in December 2001 and is not expected to commence before resumption of the Second Reading of the SF Bill. Based on this assumption, we propose this amendment to ensure the effective operation of the BAO 2001. We shall keep the need for this technical amendment under review before submitting formal Committee Stage Amendments to resume the Second Reading of the Bill.**